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BOARD'S REPORT 

To the Members of Edel Finance Company Limited, 
 
Your Directors hereby present the 34th Board’s Report on the business, operations and state of 

affairs of the Company together with the audited financial statements for the year ended March 

31, 2023: 
  
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
I. Consolidated Financial Performance: 

(₹ in million) 

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 

Total Income 10,081.49 13,247.64 

Total Expenditure 11,468.01 14,279.92 

Loss before share in profit of associates and tax (1,386.52) (1,032.28) 

Share in Profit/(Loss) of associates (106.31) (361.72) 

Loss before tax (1,492.83) (1,394.00) 

Tax Expenses 503.95 (78.51) 

Loss after tax for the year (1,996.78) (1,315.49) 

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (0.60) (18.76) 

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (1,997.38) (1,334.25) 

Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to:-   

Owners of the parent (2,015.10) (1,395.79) 

Non-Controlling interests 18.32 80.30 

Other Comprehensive Income /(Loss) attributable 
to:- 

  

Owners of the parent (0.72) (18.77) 

Non-Controlling interests 0.12 0.01 

Total Comprehensive Income /(Loss) attributable to:-   

Owners of the parent (2,015.82) (1,414.56) 

Non-Controlling interests 18.44 80.31 

Earnings per Equity Share (₹) (Face Value of ₹ 100 
each):- 

  

Basic (27.84) (19.34) 

Diluted (27.84) (19.34) 



 

 

 
II. Standalone Financial Performance: 

(₹ in million)   
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 

Total Income 3,105.92 1,886.60 

Total Expenditure 2,243.12 1,829.07 

Profit before Tax 862.80 57.53 

Provision for Tax (including deferred tax 
benefit/(expense)) 

208.78 164.29 

Profit after Tax 654.02 221.82 

Other comprehensive Income /(Loss) 0.14 (0.72) 

Total comprehensive Income 654.16 221.10 

Earnings per share (₹) (Face Value of Rs. 100 each):-   

      Basic 9.04 3.07 

      Diluted 9.04 3.07 
   
 
INFORMATION ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY  
Information on the operational and financial performance, is given in the Management 

Discussion and Analysis Report, forming part of this Report, and is in accordance with the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations’). 

 

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the total consolidated income was ₹ 10,081.49 million as 

compared to₹ 13,247.64 million during the previous year. The loss for the year was ₹ 1,996.78 

million as against loss of ₹ 1,315.49 million in the previous year. 

 

During the year ended March 31, 2023, total consolidated income was ₹ 3,105.92 million as 

compared to   ₹ 1,886.60 million during the previous year. Income from interest stood at ₹ 662.61 

million as compared to ₹ 252.37 million in the previous year. The profit for the year was ₹ 654.02 

million as against profit of ₹ 221.82 million in the previous year. 

  
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 

and Rules framed thereunder (‘the Act’) and the applicable Accounting Standards and forms part 

of this Report. 

 

The Auditors’ Report on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 is unmodified 

and is annexed to the financial statements. 

 
 



 

 

 
FINANCE 
 
During the year under review, the Company issued the Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) on 
private placement basis. 
 
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES   
The salient features of the financial statements of each of the subsidiaries and associate as 
required under the Act is provided in the financial statements in Form AOC-1. The financial 
statements of the subsidiaries and associates are available on the website of the Company at the 
link: www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of financial 
statements of the subsidiaries and associates may write to the Company Secretary at the 
Registered Office of the Company. 
 
LOANS, INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEES 
 
Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided are 
reported in the financial statements, forming part of this Annual Report. 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
All the Related Party Transactions entered by the Company are on arm’s length and in the 
ordinary course of business. The Company has not entered into transactions with the Promoters, 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, which may have potential conflict of interest with the 
Company. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated the 

Related Party Transactions Policy, which is available on the website of the Company at 

www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 
 
Particulars of contracts or arrangements with the related parties as prescribed in Section 188 of 
the Act and forming part of this Report is provided in in Form AOC-2 annexed as Annexure I. All 
the Related Party Transactions as required under the applicable Accounting Standards are 
reported in the financial statements. 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
(i) Independent Directors  

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the 
Independent Directors have given a declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as 
provided in the said Section and in the Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, the 
Independent Directors are persons of integrity and possess relevant expertise, experience and 
proficiency. 

 
 
 



 

 

 
(ii) Executive Directors  

Pursuant to the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘the 
NRC’), the Board has, subject to the approval of the Members, appointed Ms. Ananya Suneja 
(DIN: 07297081) as an Additional Director w.e.f. May 24, 2023 and also designated Ms. Suneja 
as an Executive Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from May 24, 
2023.  

 
(iii) Non-executive Directors  

Mr. S. Ranganathan (DIN: 00125493), a Non-executive Director resigned from the Board with 
effect from the close of business hours of January 9, 2023. The Board places on record its 
sincere appreciation of the services rendered by Mr. Ranganathan during his tenure as 
Director of the Company. 

 
Ms. Priyadeep Chopra (DIN: 00079353) was appointed as Non-executive Director of the 
Company w.e.f. May 24, 2023.  

 
(iii) Retirement by rotation  

Ms. Vidya Shah (DIN: 00274831) retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General 

Meeting and, being eligible, has offered herself for re-appointment. 
 
(iv) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)  

Mr. Tarun Khurana resigned as Manager of the Company with effect from May 24, 2023.   
The KMPs of the Company are also the KMPs of the Holding Company and draw 
remuneration from the Holding Company. 

 
NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD 
 
During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Board met 5 times. The details of the Board meetings 
and the attendance of the Directors at the meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance 
Report, which forms part of this Report. 
 
REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy pursuant to Section 178 of the Act and the 
Listing Regulations. The Policy is provided as Annexure II to this Report. 
 
EVALUATION OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD 
 
A Board Evaluation Policy (the Policy) for evaluating the performance of the Board, its 
Committees, the Executive Directors, the Non-executive Directors and the Independent Directors 
has been adopted by the Company. 
 

 
 
 



 

 

The Policy inter alia provides the criteria for performance evaluation such as Board effectiveness, 
quality of discussion, contribution at the meetings, business acumen, strategic thinking, time 
commitment, relationship with the stakeholders, corporate governance practices, review of the 
terms of reference of the Committees and the contribution of the Committees to the Board in 
discharging its functions, etc. 

 
A separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held wherein the performance of the Non-
Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole (including the Committees) in terms 
of the provisions of the Act, the Listing Regulations and the Guidance Note issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India in this regard was discussed. 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. The Company’s internal control system is designed to ensure operational efficiency, 
protection and conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting and 
compliance with the laws and regulations. The internal control system is also supported by an 
internal audit process. 
 
M/s. JHS & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Internal Auditors of your 
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
Risk management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy that seeks to minimise 
adverse impact on business objectives and capitalise on opportunities. The Group Risk 
Management Committee oversees the risk management framework of the Company through 
regular and proactive intervention by identifying risks and formulating mitigation plans. Further 
details are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis Section forming part of this 
Report. 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
The Audit Committee comprises of the Independent Directors of the Company: 

  
Dr. Vinod Juneja - Independent Director (Chairman)  
Mr. Atul Ambavat - Independent Director   
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar - Independent Director. 

  
Further details of the Audit Committee are provided in the Corporate Governance Report which 
forms part of this Report. 

 
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM  
 
The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to report genuine concerns/grievances. The 
Policy is available on the website of the Company at the link: www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 
 



 

 

The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against the victimisation of the persons who use the 
vigil mechanism. The vigil mechanism is overseen by the Audit Committee. 
 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

The Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act. As of date, the CSR Committee comprises of: 

 
Ms. Vidya Shah – Non-executive Director 
Mr. Atul Ambavat – Independent Director 
Dr. Vinod Juneja – Independent Director. 

 
A report on the Corporate Social Responsibility in accordance with the provisions of the 
Section 135 of the Act is provided in Annexure III to this Report. The CSR Policy is available 
on the website of the Company at the link: www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 
M/s. Sahani & Kothari Associates, Company Secretaries, were appointed as the Secretarial 
Auditors to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. The 
Report of the Secretarial Auditors is provided as Annexure IV to this Report. The Secretarial 
Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remarks or disclaimer. 

 
PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

 
The Company has a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace. No 
cases were reported during the year under review. There were no complaints pending as on 
March 31, 2023. The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of 
Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS/ OUTGO    
A. Conservation of energy 

 

i. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy – The operations of the Company are 

not energy intensive. However, adequate measures have been taken for conservation of 

energy wherever possible. 

ii. The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy – Though the 

operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the Company explores alternative 

sources of energy, as and when the necessity arises. 

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments – Nil 



 

 

 
B. Technology absorption 

 
i. The efforts made towards technology absorption – The Company extensively uses the 

information technology in its operations and has absorbed the technology required in this 

regard. 
 

ii. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or 

import substitution – The Company has leveraged the technology in the difficult times of 

pandemic. 
 

iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year): 
 

(a) the details of technology imported: Not Applicable 
 

(b) the year of import: Not Applicable 
 

(c) whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable 
 

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons 
thereof: Not Applicable 

 
iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development – Not Applicable. 

 
C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

 
During the year under review, there was no foreign exchange inflow (previous year: Nil) and 
no foreign exchange outgo (previous year: Rs. 2,304.08 million). 

 
OTHER DISCLOSURES   

i) There are no significant material changes and commitments affecting the financial 
position of the Company that occurred between the end of financial year and the date of 
this Report. 

 
ii) There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

 
iii) There was no revision in the financial statements of the Company. 

 
iv) There was no application made or proceeding pending against the Company under the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. There was no instance of onetime settlement with 
any Bank/Financial Institution in respect of loan taken by the Company. 

 
v) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 

which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 
 

vi) No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee and the Board. 
 

vii) Disclosure pertaining to maintenance of cost records as specified under the Act is not 
applicable to the Company. 



 

 

 
viii) The Company has not issued equity shares with differential voting rights as to dividend, 

voting or otherwise. 
 

ix) The Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act. 
 

x) The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 
ANNUAL RETURN  
Pursuant to Sections 92 and 134 of the Act, the Annual Return as at March 31, 2023 in Form 

MGT-7, is available on the website of the Company at the link: 

www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, the Report on Corporate Governance together with the 
certificate issued by M/s. Sahani & Kothari Associates, Company Secretaries, on compliance 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is 
provided in Annexure V and forms part of this Report. 
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act, the Directors confirm that: 

 
i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed; 
 
ii) such accounting policies have been selected and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and the profits of the 
Company for the financial year ended on that date; 

iii) proper and sufficient care had been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

iv) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
 
v) internal financial controls have been laid down and the same are adequate and were 

operating effectively; and 
 
vi) proper systems had been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
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EDEL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED (EFCL) FY 2022-23 

Management Discussion & Analysis 

Macro-Economic Review and Outlook 
 
India's growing prominence as a formidable player in the global economy is becoming evident 
as the search for new leadership unfolds in the global arena.  
 
India’s visionary foreign policy and dedication to aiding nations in crises have earned it the 
trust and admiration of the international community. Leveraging its thriving tech industry, 
favorable demographics, and proactive foreign investment strategies, India is thriving on the 
global stage. 
 
Assuming the G20 Presidency in 2023, India seized a unique opportunity to strengthen its 
global economic standing and emerge as a soft power. With its growing influence, India's G20 
Presidency showcases its independent foreign policy fueled by economic prowess. This 
platform is expected to foster relationships, form new partnerships, and contribute to the 
international community by addressing global challenges and promoting sustainable 
economic development. 
 
Despite the 2022 global economic events impacting every country, India's economy showed 
resilience amid the financial challenges. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) recognized 
India as a pivotal player in global economic recovery, with an impressive GDP growth forecast 
for 2023. India and China are expected to contribute around half of the global growth, 
highlighting India's potential to drive and shape the global recovery process. 
 
Stable growth in the Indian economy is attributed to factors like sustained government capital 
expenditure, corporate sector deleveraging, lower non-performing assets in banks, and 
moderation in commodity prices. High-frequency indicators have shown robust performance 
in recent quarters, and digitization efforts, such as the Unified Payments Interface (UPI), have 
boosted financial inclusion. 
 
The Union Budget 2023-24 outlined the action agenda for India's growth and development, 
focusing on infrastructure, education, skill development, urban development, green economy, 
job creation, and global competitiveness. The increased spending on infrastructure aims to lay 
the foundation for achieving a $5-trillion economy by 2026 and eventually a $7-trillion 
economy by 2030. 
 
However, India faces risks such as elevated inflation, challenges in balance of payments, and 
uncertainties arising from de-globalization and fading post-pandemic pent-up demand. 
Despite these challenges, India's strong fundamentals and reform-oriented approach provide 
a foundation for economic growth. The government's emphasis on digital platforms and 
measures to boost manufacturing output further support the economy's growth prospects. 
  



INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 
 
NBFC Industry 
The outlook for Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) remains promising. The MSME 
sector is a major contributor to the socio-economic development of the country, contributing 
approximately 30% to India’s GDP and is crucial in terms of employment generation, exports, 
and lending opportunities. Various government initiatives ensure technology upgradation, 
move towards non-cash transactions, ease of compliance and easy and affordable access to 
credit to MSMEs. Securitization volumes of NBFCs and HFCs is estimated at ~61,000 crore in 
Q4FY23, indicating an increase in funding requirements to meet the growing credit demand, 
as per a credit rating agency report.  
 
Growth will be driven by strong demand for credit, particularly in the retail and small and 
medium enterprises (SME) segments. The asset quality of NBFCs is expected to remain stable, 
supported by a gradual economic recovery and improving business sentiment. Additionally, 
the regulatory environment for NBFCs is expected to be stable, with the government taking 
measures to address the liquidity concerns faced by the sector in the past. 
 
NBFCs with strong risk management practices and digital capabilities are likely to outperform 
their peers. These companies will be better equipped to manage their portfolio risks and cater 
to the evolving needs of their customers. 
 
Overall, the outlook for NBFCs in India is positive, with AUM growth expected to remain 
strong in FY23-24. Companies that prioritize risk management, digitalization, and customer-
centricity are likely to succeed in the competitive landscape. With a stable regulatory 
environment and improving economic conditions, NBFCs are well-positioned to contribute 
to the growth of India's financial sector. 

EDEL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED OVERVIEW 
 
Edel Finance Company Limited (EFCL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial 
Services Limited. It is a non-banking financial institution (Core Investment Company) 
registered with the Reserve Bank of India. EFCL is primarily engaged in the business of credit 
and investment. 
 
EFCL has obtained a certificate of registration dated June 28, 2004 bearing registration no. B-
13.01771 issued by The Reserve Bank of India under section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934, to commence/carry on the business of non-banking financial institution without 
accepting public deposits subject to the conditions given in the certificate of registration under 
the name Dropadi Finance Limited when it was a subsidiary of Anagram group.  
 
Subsequent to acquisition of Anagram Capital Limited by Edelweiss group in FY11, the name 
of Dropadi Finance Limited was changed to Edel Finance Company Limited on February 26, 
2011. Pursuant to RBI circular dated November 10, 2018, EFCL had become systemically 
important Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) falling under Multiple NBFCs from 
December 2014. 
 
The Company was granted the registration as Core Investment Company (NBFC-CIC-ND-SI) 
on October 9, 2018 subject to the conditions given in the certificate of registration by the 
Reserve Bank of India. 



 

EFCL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR FY23 

A summary of our FY23 financial highlights together with financials for FY22 as per Ind AS 
is as under: 

 Total Revenue: Rs. 3,105.92 million (Rs. 1,886.60 million for FY22) 
 Total Expenses: Rs. 2,243.12 million (Rs. 1,829.07 million in FY22) 
 Profit after Tax: Rs. 654.02 million (Profit of Rs. 221.82 million for FY22) 

 Networth: Rs. 15,235.11 million (Rs. 12,580.93 million at the end of FY22) 

 

PROFIT AFTER TAX 

Our Profit for FY23 was Rs. 654.02 million compared to a net profit of Rs.221.82 million 
for FY22. 

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS 

EFCL performs the functions of a Core Investment Company (CIC) and broadly offers 
investment and lending activities for the Edelweiss group companies. It has ceased to extend 
credit after its conversion to CIC. 

Balance Sheet Gearing 
EFCL has a total net worth of Rs. 15,235.11 million as at the end of FY23 compared to Rs. 
12,580.95 million as at the end of FY22. Amount of debt on the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 
2023 was Rs.26,746.32 million (Rs. 17,623.82 million as on March 31, 2022). The gross Balance 
Sheet size at the end of FY23 was Rs.42,038.93 million compared to Rs. 30,258.84 million at the 
end of FY22. 

Capital Adequacy Ratio 
As per the Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential Norms stipulated by Reserve Bank, 
all NBFCs–ND–SI are required to maintain a minimum Capital to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio 
(“CRAR”) of 30%. EFCL’s CRAR as on March 31, 2023 was 31.79% as compared to total CRAR 
of 41.05 % as on March 31, 2022. 

 

ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN FINANCIAL RATIOS 
 

As per the recent amendments to the SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, we give below additional information in respect of financial 
parameters that are applicable to our company: 

 
Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately 



previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations therefor, 
including: 

 
 Debt Equity Ratio 1.76 times at the end of FY23 compared to 1.40 times at the end of 

FY22. 
 

 Operating Profit Margin defined as Net Interest Income as a percentage of Interest 
Income declined to (599.95)% in FY23 compared to (49.83)% in FY22. 

 
 Net Profit Margin was 21.06% at the end of FY23 compared to 11.76% at the end of FY22. 

 
Return on Average Equity for FY23 is 1.83% compared to (10.58)% for FY22. 

 
Other parameters, namely Debtors Turnover, Inventory Turnover, Interest Coverage Ratio 
and Current Ratio, are not applicable to our Company. 

 

OUTLOOK & STRATEGY 
 

OPPORTUNITIES  
 
Some key trends and factors that are likely to act as catalyst for growth and present significant 
opportunities for our organization are as below: 
 
Increasing disposable income: India is seeing a rise in disposable income levels, which 
provides a significant opportunity for the financial services sector to offer new and innovative 
investment products and services. With more disposable income, consumers are looking for 
investment options beyond traditional savings accounts and fixed deposits, and the financial 
services sector can capitalize on this trend by offering investment products like mutual funds, 
stocks, bonds, and other financial instruments. 
 
Government initiatives: The Indian government has launched several initiatives aimed at 
increasing financial inclusion and penetration of financial services in the country. For 
example, the Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana was launched to ensure that every household 
has access to a bank account, and the Atal Pension Yojana was launched to provide pension 
benefits to the unorganized sector. These initiatives have created a large market for financial 
services, and players in the sector can capitalize on this opportunity by developing products 
and services that cater to the needs of these customers. 
 
Rising digital adoption: With the rapid adoption of digital technologies in India, the financial 
services sector has a significant opportunity to provide innovative and customized services to 
customers. Mobile banking and payment services, online investment platforms, and robo-
advisory services are examples of digital financial services that have gained popularity in 
recent years. The financial services sector can leverage digital technologies to provide 
convenient and cost-effective financial services to customers, especially those in rural and 
remote areas. 
 
Demographic dividend: India has a young population, and as this population ages, there will 



be an increasing demand for retirement and pension products. The financial services sector 
can capitalize on this opportunity by developing innovative and customized retirement and 
pension products that cater to the needs of this demographic. With the rise of nuclear families 
and increasing healthcare costs, retirement and pension products that provide healthcare 
benefits can also gain popularity. 
 

THREATS  
 
Some external factors that may hinder or pose challenges are as below: 

Cybersecurity risks: As digital adoption increases in the financial services sector, there is also 
an increasing risk of cyberattacks and data breaches. These cybersecurity risks can result in 
financial losses, damage to reputation, and loss of customer trust. The financial services sector 
needs to invest in robust cybersecurity measures to protect against these risks. 

Regulatory changes: Changes in regulations or policies can have a significant impact on the 
financial services sector, making it difficult for players to adapt quickly. For example, changes 
in tax policies, capital adequacy requirements, or customer protection regulations can impact 
the profitability and viability of financial services products and services. 

Global competition: As the Indian financial services market continues to evolve, there is a 
growing concern regarding the entrance of international players, posing a significant 
competitive threat to domestic entities. These global players may have more resources, 
technology, and expertise, and hence may be better equipped to provide innovative financial 
services to customers. Domestic players need to continuously innovate and upgrade their 
products and services to stay competitive in this dynamic market. 

Macroeconomic challenges: India is subject to various external and internal factors that can 
lead to economic challenges, which can impact the financial services sector. External factors 
such as changes in global trade policies, fluctuation in commodity prices, and changes in 
global interest rates can affect the Indian economy, and hence the financial services sector. 
Internal factors such as inflation, government policies, and domestic market conditions can 
also impact the sector. 

ENTERPRISE GROUPS  

GOVERNANCE  
 
At the core of everything we do is a strong commitment to governance, which encompasses 
not only compliance but also ethics and values. For us, governance means trust, legitimacy, 
accountability, competence, and respect for the law. We believe that these values are essential 
to building a culture of transparency, authenticity, and fairness that is critical to the success 
of our organization. 
 
Our Board plays a crucial role in ensuring that these high governance standards are upheld 
at every level of our organization. Through its unwavering focus on ethics, integrity, 
transparency, and fairness, our board has established a robust framework for conduct, 
behaviour, and process oversight. 
 



To foster a culture of good governance throughout our organization, we have established clear 
rules for individual and entity-level behaviour and conduct, covering issues such as conflict 
of interest, insider trading, and handling sensitive information. We are also leveraging 
technology to refine our practices and facilitate smooth functioning while working from 
home, ensuring that we continue to maintain the highest standards of compliance. 
 
At the end of the day, our commitment to governance reflects our unwavering dedication to 
our stakeholders - our customers, employees, shareholders, and the communities in which we 
operate. By upholding these values, we are able to build trust, maintain legitimacy, and hold 
ourselves accountable to the highest standards of excellence in everything we do. 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
Risk management is a fundamental aspect of Edelweiss, deeply ingrained in our operations. 
Our commitment to effective risk management practices has proven invaluable in navigating 
through challenging and uncertain times. At the core of our risk management approach is the 
implementation of a robust Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework, which enables 
us to strategically benchmark our risk practices and ensure comprehensive risk mitigation 
across our business entities. To further formalize this process, we have developed an in-house 
"Eleven-risk framework" that guides us in the continuous assessment, avoidance, 
management, and mitigation of risks across all our business verticals. 
 
 

                              
     Fig: Eleven-risk framework 

 
 
Over the course of the year, we have undertaken several initiatives targeting the eleven key 
risk areas identified within our framework.  
 
In terms of regulatory risk, we have leveraged analytics to identify early warning signs, 
enabling us to proactively implement mitigation measures. This has proven crucial in 
adapting to evolving regulatory landscapes and ensuring compliance with the latest 
requirements. 
 
We continue to focus on operational and process risks. Each of our business units review their 
critical and non-critical processes and underlying standard operating procedures (SOPs). This 
allows us to enhance efficiency, streamline operations, and minimize potential disruptions. 
By identifying process vulnerabilities and implementing appropriate controls, we ensure 
overall operational resilience. Addressing credit risk has been a key focus for us, leading to 
the establishment of a comprehensive framework for asset quality review. Through this 
framework, we diligently monitor our credit exposure, assess asset quality, and manage 
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Reputational 

Risk
Market Risk Credit Risk

Fraud Risk
Operational 

Risk
Phyical and 
Infra Risk

Technology 
Risk

Liquidity Risk People Risk
Regulatory 
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potential credit losses. Addressing credit risk has been a key focus for us and we have in place 
a comprehensive framework for asset quality review. Through this framework, we diligently 
monitor our credit exposure, assess asset quality, and manage potential credit losses.  
 
Recognizing the significance of reputational risk, we have incorporated it into our business 
strategies. We have adopted an effective crisis management approach to safeguard our 
reputation, swiftly addressing any adverse incidents or challenges that may arise. By 
maintaining transparent communication and timely responses to all stakeholders, we aim to 
build and preserve trust in our brand and services. 
 
In an increasingly digital landscape, technology risk has become a critical concern for 
businesses. At Edelweiss, we have made significant progress in fortifying our IT security 
measures to address emerging risks associated with evolving technologies and cyber threats. 
By continually enhancing our technology infrastructure and implementing robust security 
measures, we aim to mitigate the potential risks arising from the rapidly changing technology 
ecosystem. 
 
To ensure a comprehensive risk governance structure, Edelweiss has established a dedicated 
Risk Committee at the Board level. This committee plays a crucial role in overseeing and 
guiding our risk management efforts. Additionally, our key subsidiaries also maintain their 
own risk committees, enabling focused risk management within each business entity. We have 
further strengthened risk management practices through the establishment of Investment 
Committees and Credit Committees. These entities provide a multidimensional perspective 
to risk assessment, avoidance, management, and mitigation, ensuring that risks are addressed 
comprehensively across the organization. 
 
At Edelweiss, we recognize that effective risk management is essential for maintaining the 
trust of our stakeholders, driving sustainable growth, and safeguarding the interests of our 
clients and investors. By continually evolving our risk management practices and 
frameworks, we remain committed to upholding the highest standards of risk management 
excellence in the dynamic and evolving financial landscape. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
       Internal Financial Controls 
 

The internal controls at Edelweiss are well established and robust which are commensurate 
with the nature of its businesses, size & scale and complexity of its operations to ensure 
orderly and efficient conduct of business. These controls have been designed to ensure 
assurance with regards to maintaining proper accounting controls, substantiation of financial 
statements and adherence to Ind AS requirements, safeguarding of resources, prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, ensuring operating effectiveness, reliability of financial 
reporting, compliance with applicable regulations and relevant matters under the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2013.  
 
The internal control framework of Edelweiss continues to follow the assurance practices like 
the COSO framework, assurance on process efficiency and reliability of internal controls being 
aligned to risks identified in Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSA), etc. to strengthen the 
overall system.    



 
Independent Audit and Assurance  
 
The internal auditors of Edelweiss follow standards on internal audit, along with guidelines 
issued by the regulators and ensure compliance with section 138 of the Companies Act 2013, 
read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended and notified from 
time to time. The Internal Audit function operates under the supervision of the Audit 
Committee of the Board.   
 
The internal audits are carried out by an external professionals who provide independent 
view and assurance by assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, 
compliance to internal and external guidelines, and risk management practices across the 
Group.   

EDELWEISS BRAND  
 
Edelweiss is a brand that believes in the possibilities of ideas and the power of values to 
protect them. The Company’s name is shared with a rare white alpine flower that best 
represents this tenet. Just as the flower’s deep ‘felt like’ covering protects it from the elements, 
Edelweiss has a steadfast dedication to the principles of Being Unlimited, which has helped it 
not only weather the storms but also emerge stronger. Its efforts to simplify its business 
structure and refine its individual brands demonstrate a deep commitment to providing the 
best possible service to its customers. Furthermore, the brand’s numerous public service 
initiatives demonstrate a profound sense of responsibility and care towards the communities 
it operates in, earning it the respect and admiration of its stakeholders. 

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE 
 
Edelweiss has always stood out from its competitors by placing an unwavering focus on 
customer-centricity. The Company is dedicated to providing its customers with easy access to 
services and developing innovative solutions that are specifically tailored to their unique 
needs. This commitment to the customer experience is evident in the way Edelweiss blends 
cutting-edge technology with personalized service to build strong, long-lasting relationships 
with its customers. 
 
Through its use of technology, Edelweiss is able to enhance process efficiencies and overall 
customer satisfaction, ensuring that its customers receive the highest level of service and 
support. This focus on the customer has been a driving force behind the company's 
remarkable growth and success, even during challenging times. Edelweiss has built a strong 
and loyal customer base that trusts the company to provide innovative solutions and 
exceptional service, no matter what challenges may arise. 
 
Cautionary Statement Statements made in this Annual Report may contain certain words or phrases that are 
forward-looking statements, which are tentative, based on current expectations of the management of Edelweiss 
Financial Services Limited or any of its subsidiaries and associates (“Edelweiss”). Actual results may vary from 
such statements contained in this report due to various risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties 
include the effect of economic and political conditions in India and outside India, volatility in interest rates and 
in the securities market, new regulations and Government policies that may impact the businesses of Edelweiss 
as well as the ability to implement its strategy. The information contained herein is as of the date referenced and 
Edelweiss does not undertake any obligation to update these statements. Edelweiss has obtained all market or 
industry data and other information from sources believed to be reliable or through its internal estimates unless 



otherwise stated, although its accuracy or completeness cannot be guaranteed. Some part of the report relating to 
business-wise financial performance, balance sheet, asset books of Edelweiss and industry data herein is 
reclassified/regrouped based on Management estimates and may not directly correspond to published data. The 
numbers have also been rounded off or approximated in the interest of easier understanding. Prior period or other 
figures have been regrouped/reclassified/re-casted wherever necessary. FY18, FY19, FY20 FY21 and FY22 
Numbers are as per IndAS whereas the rest are as per IGAAP. All information in this presentation has been 
prepared solely by the company and has not been independently verified by anyone else. 
 
 



 

 

Annexure - I 
 

Edel Finance Company Limited 
 

Form AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto: 
 
I. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: None 

(₹ in million) 

Sr. 
No. 
  
  
  
  

Name(s) of the 
related party and 
nature of 
relationship 
  
  
  
  

Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 
  
  

Duration of 
the contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 
  
  

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 
including 
the value, if any 
  

Justification for 
entering into 
such contracts 
or arrangements 
or transactions 
  

Date of 
approval 
by the 
Board 
  
  

Amount 
paid as 
advances, if 
any 
  
  

Date on which the 
special resolution 
was passed in 
general meeting as 
required under first 
proviso to section 
188 

Not Applicable 

 

  



 

 

II. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

(₹ in million) 

Sr. 
No. 

Name(s) of the related party 
and nature of relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/arrangements 
/transactions 

Duration of the 
contracts/arrangem
ents/transactions 

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

Date of approval 
by the Board 

Amount 
paid as 
advances, if 
any 

1. 
Edelweiss Securities and 
Investments Private Limited 
(Fellow Subsidiary) 

Sale of securities - 
   

578.18  
 

January 31, 2022 - 

2. 
Edelweiss Financial Services 
Limited  
(Holding Company) 

Purchase of securities - 
   

4,031.50 
 

January 31, 2022 - 

 

For Edel Finance Company Limited 
 
 
 
 

Vidya Shah   Ananya Suneja 
Non-executive Director Executive Director 
DIN: 00274831               DIN: 07297081 

Mumbai, May 24, 2023 
 



 

 
 

Annexure II 
 

Remuneration Policy 
 
Objective  
 
The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) requires a Company to frame policy for determining the 
remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other employees.  
 
The objective of the Remuneration Policy (the Policy) of the Company is to provide a framework for 
the remuneration of the Independent Directors, Non-executive Directors, Managing 
Director/Executive Directors, KMPs, and other Senior level employees of the Company.  
 
The objective of this Policy is to ensure that: 
 

i. the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain talent 
required to run the company successfully; 
 

ii. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and 
 

iii. remuneration to the Directors, KMPs and senior management comprises a balance of fixed 
and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the 
working of the Company and its goals. 
 

Remuneration of the Independent Directors & Non- executive Directors 
 

 The Independent Directors & Non-executive Directors are eligible for sitting fees for 
attending the meetings of the Board and the Committees thereof.  
 

 The Independent Directors & Non-executive Directors are also eligible for commission, 
subject to limits prescribed under the Act and the Rules framed there under.  
 

 The Independent Directors are not eligible for stock options.  
 

 The Non-executive Directors (other than promoter Directors) shall be eligible for stock 
options.  
 

Remuneration of the Managing Director & Executive Directors 
 

 The remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive Directors is recommended by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) to the Board. Based on the 
recommendations of the NRC, the Board determines and approves the remuneration of the 
Managing Director/Executive Directors, subject to necessary approvals, if any.  
 

 The remuneration paid to the Managing Director/Executive Directors is within the limits 
prescribed under the Act and approved by the shareholders of the Company. The 
remuneration structure includes fixed salary, perquisites, bonus, other benefits and 
allowances and contribution to Funds, etc.  
 

 The Executive Directors (other than the promoter Directors) shall be eligible for stock options.  
 

Remuneration of the KMP (other than Executive Directors) and Senior level employees  
 

 The key components of remuneration package of the KMP (other than Executive Directors) 
and Senior level employees shall comprise of fixed salary, perquisites, annual bonus, other 
benefits and allowances and contribution to Funds, etc. 
 

 They shall be eligible for stock options. 
 
 



 

 
 

Policy Review 
 

 The Policy may be amended as may be necessary. 
 

 The NRC shall implement the Policy, and may issue such guidelines, procedures etc. as it 
may deem fit. 
 

      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
      Edel Finance Company Limited 

 
 
 

      Vidya Shah                      Ananya Suneja 
      Non-executive Director          Non-executive Director 

Mumbai, May 24, 2023                 DIN: 00274831                DIN: 07297081 
 

 
 



Annexure - III 
 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities  
for the financial year 2022-23 

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule 9 of 
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014] 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 

To leverage the capacity and capital to equip and enable the social sector to achieve the greatest 
impact on the lives of the poor in India. 
 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation / Nature 
of Directorship 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 

Committee attended 
during the year 

1 Ms. Vidya Shah Non-executive 
Director  

1 1 

2 Mr. Atul Ambavat Independent 
Director  

1 1 

3 Mr. S. Ranganathan 
(Ceased w.e.f. January 9, 2023) 

Non-executive 
Director 

1 1 

  
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: 
 

Investor Relations ‐ Edel Finance Company Ltd (edelweissfin.com) 
 

4. Provide the executive summary along with the weblink of Impact assessment of CSR 
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: 
 
Not applicable 
 

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 – Nil 
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 – 

Nil 
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years – Not Applicable 
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any – Nil 
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b+c-d) – Nil 
 

6. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year (in 
Rs.) 

Amount Unspent  

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

section 135(5) 
 

Amount Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of transfer 

Nil - - - - - 

  



(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year – Nil 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year – Nil 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads – Nil  

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable – Not applicable 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) – Nil 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any – Nil 

Sl. No. Particular Amount 

(in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year - 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] - 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of 
the previous financial years, if any 

- 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] - 

  
7. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

Sl. 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 

Year 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
section 135 (6) 

(in Rs.) 

Amount spent 
in the 

reporting 
Financial Year 

(in Rs.) 

Amount transferred to any 
fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per section 
135(6), if any. 

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 
financial 

years. 

(in Rs.) 

Name of 
the Fund 

Amount 
(in Rs.) 

Date of 
transfer 

1 FY 2019-20 Nil 

2 FY 2020-21 

3 FY 2021-22 

 Total Nil 

  

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the 
preceding financial year(s): 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Sl. 
No. 

Project 
ID 

Name of 
the 

Project 

Financial Year 
in which the 
project was 
commenced 

Project 
duration 

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 

project (in 
Rs.) 

Amount 
spent on 

the project 
in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year 

(in Rs) 

Cumulative 
amount 

spent at the 
end of 

reporting 
Financial 

Year. 

(in Rs.) 

Status of the 
project - 

Completed 
/Ongoing 

- - - - - - - - - 

Total Nil 

 
 



 
 

8. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so 
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details) – Not 
Applicable 

  

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) – Not Applicable 
b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset – Not Applicable 

c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital 
asset is registered, their address etc. – Not Applicable 

d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address 
and location of the capital asset) – Not Applicable 

    

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net 
profit as per section 135(5) – Not Applicable 
 

 For and on behalf of the Board 
 Edel Finance Company Limited 

 Vidya Shah 

 
 
 
Atul Ambavat 

 Mumbai, May 24, 2023 
Non-executive Director Independent Director 
DIN: 00274831 DIN: 00195875 
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 Annexure	–	IV	
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 
 

 [Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members, 
Edel Finance Company Limited 
Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T. Road,  
Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098. 
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Edel Finance Company Limited              
(CIN:  U65920MH1989PLC053909) having its Registered Office at Edelweiss House, Off. 
C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098 (hereinafter called the “Company”) for the Financial 
Year ended on March 31, 2023 (the “Audit Period”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in 
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / 
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, registers, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during 
the Audit Period complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according 
to the provisions of: 
 
(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made thereunder; 
 
(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 

thereunder; 
 
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
 
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings1; 

 
(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”): 

 
1 Not applicable to the Company during the audit period  
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(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 20112; 
 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 
 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 20093; 

 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 20144; 
 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-

Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 
 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client; 

 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 20095; 
 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 

Regulations, 19986; and 
 
(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Non-Convertible 
Debentures of the Company issued by the Company on a private placement 
basis and listed on BSE Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). 

 
(vi) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the Circular(s), Direction(s), Notification(s) 

and Regulation(s) issued by the Reserve Bank of India as applicable to a Core 
Investment Company, being laws that are specifically applicable to the Company 
based on their sector/industry. 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standard on 
Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India related to meetings and minutes. 
 
During the Audit Period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the 
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above and in respect of the 
laws specifically applicable (to the extent applicable) to the Company based on its 

 
2 Not applicable to the Company during the audit period  
3 Not applicable to the Company during the audit period 
4 Not applicable to the Company during the audit period 
5 Not applicable to the Company during the audit period 
6 Not applicable to the Company during the audit period 
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sector/industry, in so far as registration, submission of various returns/information to be 
filed with the respective authorities. 
 
We further report that: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of                
Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee 
Meetings; agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in compliance with the provisions 
of Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards 1 and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting.  
 
All Resolutions (including Circulars) of the Board of Directors and its Committees are 
approved on the basis of majority and are duly recorded in the respective Minutes. There 
were no dissenting views by any member of the Board of Directors during the Audit Period. 
The Company has maintained all the recordings of the Board Meetings and Committee 
Meetings held through audio visual means and has carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company which 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and standards.  
 
We further report that during the Audit Period: 
 
(i)  The Company has obtained the approval of members by way of Special Resolution 

passed at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on June 17, 2022 to appoint            
Mr. Sunil Nawal Phatarphekar (DIN: 00005164) as an Independent Director on the 
Board of Directors of the Company; 
 

(ii) The Company has obtained the approval of members under Sections 42 & 71 of the 
Act by way of Special Resolution passed at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held 
on February 13, 2023, to issue, offer and allot Non-convertible Debentures aggregating 
to Rs. 2,000 crores on a private placement basis, in one or more tranches; 
 

(iii) The Company has allotted 2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each for cash at par 
aggregating to Rs. 200 Crores to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, the Holding 
Company on a Rights Issue Basis; and 

 
(iv) The Company has allotted 2,000 Non-Convertible Debentures of the face value of              

Rs. 10,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 200 Crores on a Private Placement basis. 
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This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  May 24, 2023 

For M/s. SAHANI & KOTHARI ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

“A Peer Reviewed Unit” 
ICSI Unique Code: P2016MH056500 

 
 
 

Kirti Kothari 
Partner 

         Mem. No. F12007  
COP: 17287 

 
UDIN: F012007E000368825 
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‘Annexure A’ 
 

To, 
The Members, 
Edel Finance Company Limited 
Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T. Road,  
Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098. 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provided a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and book of 

accounts of the Company. 
 

4. No Audit has been conducted on the compliance with finance and taxation laws as the 
same are subject to audit by the Statutory Auditor of the Company and their observations, 
if any, shall hold good for the purpose of this Audit Report. 

 
5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
6. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on the test basis. 

 
7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  May 24, 2023 

For M/s. SAHANI & KOTHARI ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

“A Peer Reviewed Unit” 
ICSI Unique Code: P2016MH056500 

 
 
 

Kirti Kothari 
Partner 

         Mem. No. F12007  
COP: 17287 

 
UDIN: F012007E000368825 

 



 

 

Annexure V 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance 
 

At Edelweiss, we strongly uphold good governance practices to promote fairness, transparency, 
accountability and integrity. In line with this philosophy, Guiding Principles have been 
articulated and these forms integral part of the Company’s corporate governance practices. 
Processes have been designed to run the businesses responsibly and harmonize diversified 
interests of various stakeholders thereby enhancing stakeholder value. 

 
Board of Directors 

 
Composition, Meeting and Attendance 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 4 Directors of which 1 is Non-executive 
Non-Independent Director and 3 are Independent Directors. 

 
The annual calendar of the Board Meetings is agreed upon at the beginning of the year. The 
agenda for the Board Meetings is circulated in advance and is backed by comprehensive 
background information to enable the Board to take informed decisions. During the financial 
year 2022-23, the Board met 5 times i.e. on: May 27, 2022, August 3, 2022, November 8, 2022, 
January 30, 2023 and March 23, 2023. 

 
The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Board Meetings held 
during the financial year 2022-23 and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM), the number of 
directorships and committee positions held by them in other public limited companies and the name 
of the other listed entities where he/she is a Director and category of directorships as on March 31, 
2023, are as under: 

 
Name and DIN of the 
Directors 

Category No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
Attended 

Attendance 
at the 

last AGM 
held on 

September 
30, 2022 

No. of 
directorships 

in other 
Public 

Limited 
Companies$ 

Name of other 
Listed entities 
where person 
is Director - 
Category of 
Directorship 

Committee 
Position* 

      Member Chairman 
        
Ms. Vidya Shah 
(DIN 00274831) 

Non-Executive, 
Non-Independent 

5 Yes 4 Independent 
Director - 
Vardhman 
Special Steels 
Limited 

1 - 

        
Dr. Vinod Juneja 
(DIN: 00044311) 

Independent 5 No 8 Independent 
Director –  
1) Shyam 
Telecom 
Limited 
 

2) Shristi 
Infrastructure 
Development 
Corporation 
Limited 

 

9 1 



 

 

 
Name and DIN of the 
Directors 

Category No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
Attended 

Attendance 
at the last 

AGM held 
on 

September 
30, 2022 

No. of 
directorships 

in other 
Public 

Limited 
Companies$ 

Name of other 
Listed entities 

where person is 
Director - 

Category of 
Directorship 

Committee 
Position* 

      Member Chairman 
        

Mr. Atul Ambavat 
(DIN: 00195875) 

Independent 5 No - - - - 

        
Mr. Sunil 
Phatarphekar 

(DIN: 00005164) 

Independent 5 No 3 - 5 1 

         
Mr. S. Ranganathan@ 
(DIN: 00125493) 

Non-Executive, 
Non-
Independent 

2 Yes Not Applicable 

     
 
$ Only Directorships of public limited companies incorporated in India have been considered and excludes 
private limited companies, section 8 companies and foreign companies.  
*Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, in other public limited companies, have 
been considered for the Committee position. 
@ Mr. S. Ranganathan ceased to be Non-executive Director w.e.f. January 9, 2023. 
 
Ms. Ananya Suneja and Ms. Priyadeep Chopra were appointed as Executive Director and Non-
executive Director, respectively w.e.f. May 24, 2023. 
 
None of the Directors hold office in more than 10 public companies as prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). No Director holds Directorships in more than 7 listed 
companies. Further, none of the Non-executive Directors serve as Independent Director in more 
than 7 listed companies as required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations’). None of 
the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairperson of more 
than 5 Committees, across all public limited companies in which he/she is a Director. 
Independent Directors are Non-executive Directors as defined under the Listing Regulations 
and the Act along with Rules framed thereunder. In terms of the Listing Regulations, the 
Independent Directors have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation 
which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to 
discharge their duties. 
 
Ms. Vidya Shah is one of the promoter of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, the Holding 
Company of the Company. 
 
Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board has confirmed 
that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the Listing Regulations and that 
they are independent of the management. Further, the Independent Directors have, in terms of 
Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014, confirmed that they have enrolled themselves in the Independent 
Directors’ Databank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. In the opinion of 
the Board, the Independent Directors are persons of integrity and possess relevant expertise, 
experience and proficiency. 
 
All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified for appointed as 
Directors pursuant to Section 164 of the Act. 



 

 

 
M/s. Sahani & Kothari Associates, Company Secretaries, have issued a certificate certifying that 
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities & Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI), the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and any such statutory authority. 

 
Board skills/expertise/competence matrix 

 
The Board have identified the following parameters with respect to the skill/expertise/ 
competence that are available with the Board in the context of the business and sector for it to 
function effectively: 

 
Directors Industry 

Knowledge / 
Experience  

Technical Skills/ 
Experience 

 

Behavioural 
Competencies 
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Ms. Vidya Shah *  *  * *  - * - *  * * * 
Dr. Vinod Juneja *  *  * *  * * - -  * * * 
Mr. Atul Ambavat *  *  * *  * * * *  * * * 
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar *  *  * *  * * * *  * * * 
Ms. Ananya Suneja *  *  * *  * * * *  * * * 
Ms. Priyadeep Chopra *  *  * *  * * * *  * * * 

 

Committees of the Board: 
 

A) Audit Committee 
 

Meetings held: 
 

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Committee met 5 times on May 27, 2022, August 3, 
2022, November 8, 2022, January 30, 2023 and March 23, 2023. 

 
The composition as on March 31, 2023 and attendance of the Members at the Committee 
Meetings during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is as under:- 
 

Name of the Members 
 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 

Dr. Vinod Juneja – Chairman 5 
Mr. Atul Ambavat 5 
Mr. S. Ranganathan@ 2 
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar$ 5 

@ Mr. S. Ranganathan resigned as a Director from the Board with effect from January 9, 2023 and 
accordingly, ceased to be a member. 
 



 

 

 
All the members have financial management expertise. The constitution and terms of 
reference of the Committee are in compliance with the requirements of the Act and the 
Listing Regulations. 

 
Brief description of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee inter alia include: 

 
1) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 
credible 

 
2) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of 

auditors of the Company 
 

3) Approval of payment to the statutory auditors for any other service rendered by the 
statutory auditors 

 
4) Reviewing, with the Management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s 

report thereon before submission to the Board for approval with particular reference 
to: 

 
a. matters required to be included in the Directors Responsibility statement to be 

included in the Board’s Report in terms of clause (c) of sub section 3 of the 
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 
b. changes if any, in the accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 

 
c. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of 

judgement by management 
 

d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 
findings 

 
e. compliance with the listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 

statements 
 

f. disclosure of any related party transactions 
 

g. qualifications in the draft audit report. 
 
5) Reviewing, with the Management, the quarterly financial statements before 

submission to the Board for approval 
 

6) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems 
 

7) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory auditors and internal 
auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems 

 
8) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon 

 
9) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature 

and scope of audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern 
 
 

10) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower/Vigil mechanism 
 

11) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee. 
 

The Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Chief Financial Officer are invited to attend the 
meetings of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 



 

 

 
B) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 
Meetings held: 

 
During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Committee met on May 27, 2022. 

 
The composition as on March 31, 2023 and attendance of the Members at the Committee 
Meetings during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is as under:- 

 
Name of the Members No. of Meetings 

 Attended 
Dr. Vinod Juneja – Chairman - 
Mr. Atul Ambavat 1 
Mr. S. Ranganathan@ 1 

@ Mr. S. Ranganathan resigned as a Director from the Board with effect from January 9, 2023 and 
accordingly, ceased to be a member. 

 
Brief description of the terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
inter alia include: 

 
1) Identifying the persons who can become Directors 

 
2) Formulating the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes etc. 

and independence of a Director 
 

3) Recommending to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors 
& Key Managerial Personnel 

 
4) Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior 

management 
 

5) Specify the manner for effective annual evaluation of performance of the Board, its 
Committees and individual Directors. 

 
The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy which is annexed to the Board’s 
Report. 

 
Board Evaluation 

 
During the year, in accordance with the Board Evaluation Policy and the Guidance Note 
on Board Evaluation issued by SEBI, an annual evaluation of its own performance and 
that of the Committees and Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing 
Regulations was carried out by the Board on various parameters which inter alia included 
composition, diversity, effectiveness, quality of discussion, contribution at the Meetings, 
business acumen, strategic thinking, time commitment, relationship with the stakeholders, 
corporate governance practices, contribution of the Committees etc. 
 
A separate Meeting of the Independent Directors was held wherein the performance of 
the Non-Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole (including the 
Committees) in terms of the provisions of the Act, the Listing Regulations and the 
Guidance Note issued by SEBI in this regard was discussed. 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

Familiarization Programme 
 

The Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights, responsibilities etc. in 
relation to the nature of the financial services sector and the business model of the 
Company. The details are available on the website of the Company at: 
www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 
 
Remuneration to the Directors 

 
The Company was paying sitting fees of ₹ 20,000 per Meeting to the Independent 
Directors for attending the Meetings of the Board and the Committees thereof. The Board 
of Directors at its Meeting held on November 8, 2022, had revised the sitting fees to ₹ 
50,000 per Meeting to the Independent Directors for attending the Meetings of the Board 
and the Committees thereof. 

 
The details of the remuneration paid to the Directors during the financial year ended 
March 31, 2023 are as under: 

    (₹ in million)  
Name of the Director Remuneration Perquisites Sitting Fees Commission Total 
 (fixed &     
 performance     
 bonus)     
Ms. Vidya Shah - - - - -
Dr. Vinod Juneja - - 0.37 - 0.37
Mr. Atul Ambavat - - 0.39 - 0.39
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar - - 0.35 - 0.35
Mr. S. Ranganathan@ - - - - - 

@ Mr. S. Ranganathan ceased to be Non-executive Director w.e.f. January 9, 2023. 
 
None of the Directors hold any shares in the Company. 
 

 
C) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

 
Meetings held: 

 
The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2023 and attendance of the Members 
at the Committee Meeting held during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is as 
under:- 
 

Name of the Members 
 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 

Mr. Atul Ambavat – Chairman 1 
Ms. Vidya Shah 1 
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar -    
During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Committee met once on November 8, 
2022. 
 
Mr. Tarun Khurana is the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company. 

 
Based on the reports received from the Registrar & Transfer Agents during the year ended 
March 31, 2023, the Company did not receive any requests/complaints during the year 
ended March 31, 2023. As on March 31, 2023, there were no outstanding 
requests/complaints. 



 

 

 
D) Group Risk Management Committee 

 
Meetings held: 

 
As at March 31, 2023, the Risk Management Committee was comprising of the following 
Members: - 
  

Name of the Members 
 

Dr. Vinod Juneja - Independent Director 
Mr. Atul Ambavat - Independent Director 

Ms. Ananya Suneja - Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Tarun Khurana - Manager & Company Secretary$ 
$ Mr. Tarun Khurana was appointed as Member with effect from November 8, 2022. 
 
Brief description of the terms of reference of the Risk Committee inter alia include: 

1) To devise process / framework for management of operational risk 

2) Identifying concerns & risks 

3) Evaluating risks as to consequences & likelihoods 

4) Assessment of options for Risk Management 

5) Prioritizing the Risk Management efforts 

6) Development of Risk Management Plans 

7) Authorization for the implementation of the Risk Management Plans 

8) Tracking the Risk management efforts and manage accordingly 

9) Follow on Budgeting-Variance Analysis 

10) Design, develop and implement various measures for cyber security as may be required. 

 
The Risk Committee has framed and implemented a Risk Management Framework and Strategy. The 
Company did not have any exposure in commodity price and hedging activities during the financial 
year ended March 31, 2023. 

 
General Body Meetings 

 
The date, time and venue of the last three Annual General Meetings are given below: 

 
Financial Date Time Venue No. of 
Year    Special 

    Resolutions 
    passed 
2021-2022 September 30, 2022 5.00 p.m. Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. 

Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400 098 
Nil 

     
2020-2021 September 2, 2021 4.30 p.m. Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. 

Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400 098 
Nil 

     
2019-2020 December 24, 2020 4.30 p.m. Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. 

Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400 098 
2 

     



 

 

 
 

Means of Communication 
 

The financial results, press releases and the presentation made to the Investors/Analysts are 
submitted to the Stock Exchanges and also uploaded on the website of the Company at 
www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. The financial results are also published in the newspapers. 

 
I. General Shareholder Information 

 
i. AGM: Date, time and 

venue/ mode 
Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 4.00 p.m. at the Registered 
Office of the Company at Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. 
Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400 098 

   
ii. Financial Year: April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 

iii. Book Closure dates:  Not Applicable 
   
iv. Dividend payment 

date: 
Not Applicable 
 

 
 

II. Listing of Securities on Stock Exchanges: 
 

Non-convertible Debentures  

The Company has issued Secured Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) on private 
placement. Some of the NCDs are listed on BSE. The Company has paid the listing fees to 
BSE for the financial year 2022-23. 
 
Debenture Trustee:         

The details of the Debenture Trustees for the NCDs issued by the Company are given 
below: 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

III. Registrar & Transfer Agent: 
 

a. Equity Shares 
 

Link Intime India Private Limited 
C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400083 
Tel: +91 81081 16767 Fax: +91 22 4918 6060 
e-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in Website: www.linkintime.co.in 

 
 
 
 
 

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited 
Mistry Bhavan, 4th Floor,   
122 Dinshaw Wachha Road, 
Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020 
Tel: +91 22 - 43025555 
Email: corporate@sbicaptrustee.com 
Website: www.sbicaptrustee.com  

Beacon Trusteeship Limited 
4 C&D, Siddhivinayak Chambers, 
Gandhi Nagar,  
Opp. MIG Cricket Club, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 051 
Tel.: +91 22 26558759  
Email: compliance@beacontrustee.co.in  
Website: www.beacontrustee.co.in  

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited 
Windsor, 6th Floor,  
Office No. 604 
C.S.T. Road, Kalina,  
Santacruz (East), Mumbai – 400 098 
Tel.: +91 22 4922 0555 
Email: dt.mumbai@ctltrustee.com 
Website: www.catalysttrustee.com 



 

 

 
 

b. Non-Convertible Debentures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
IV. Share Transfer System: 
 

Transfer of equity shares in electronic form are effected by the Depository/Company. 
 
V.   Distribution of shareholding and shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2023 

 
The Company is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, 
which holds 7,56,67,388 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each representing 100% of the 
shareholding pattern. 

 
VI.  Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date 

and likely impact on equity: 
 

The Company has not issued GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any other instrument convertible into 
equity. 
 

VII. Plant locations – Not Applicable    
 

VIII. Credit ratings : The credit ratings obtained by the Company during the year 2022-23 are 
as under:- 
 

Rating 
agency  

Rating  Instruments Date of 
revision 
(if any)    

Revised 
Rating 

Acuite Acuite AA- Non-convertible 
Debentures 

August 5, 2022 Acuite AA- 
From Acuite AA  

Brickwork 
Rating 

BWR AA- 
 

Non-convertible 
Debentures No Revision No change 

BWR A1+ Short term borrowing 

CARE CARE A+ Non-convertible 
Debentures  

No Revision No change 

 

CARE PP-MLD 
A+ 

Principal Protected 
Market Linked 
Debentures 

 

CARE A1+ Short term borrowing 
CRISIL CRISIL AA- Non-convertible 

Debentures 

No Revision No change 

 

CRISIL PP-MLD 
AA- 

Principal Protected 
Market Linked 
Debentures 

 

 Link Intime India Private Limited KFin Technologies Limited 
 C 101, 247 Park, Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, 
 L.B.S Marg, Financial District, Nanakramguda, 
 Vikhroli (West), Serilingampally Mandal, 
 Mumbai - 400 083 Hyderabad - 500 032 
 Tel: +91 22 81081 16767 Tel: +91 40 6716 2222 
 Fax: +91 22 4918 6060 Fax: +91 40 6716 1563 
 Email: bonds.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com 
 Website: www.linkintime.co.in Website: www.kfintech.com 



 

 

CRISIL A1+ Short term borrowing 
CRISIL AA- Bank Borrowing 
 

ICRA ICRA A+ Non-convertible 
Debentures No Revision No change 

 
Other Disclosures 

 
i. The Company did not enter into any materially significant related party transactions 

having a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Transactions 
with the related parties are disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
ii. The financial statements (both standalone and consolidated) have been prepared in 

accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards. 
 
iii. The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism to report concerns 

about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of our code of 
conduct and confirms that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit 
Committee. 

 
iv. Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading of the Company, the Policy for determining 

Material Subsidiaries and the Policy on Related Party Transactions are available at: 
www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com 
 

v. The details of the subsidiary of the Company as required under the Listing 
Regulations are as under: - 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the  
Subsidiary 

Details of Incorporation Details of Statutory Auditors 
Place Date Name Date of 

appointment 
1 Edelweiss Rural & 

Corporate Services 
Limited 

Mumbai October 17, 
2006 

M/s. S. R. Batliboi 
& Co. LLP 

July 26, 2018 

 
vi. There have been no instances where the Board has not accepted recommendations of 

any Committee of the Board, during the financial year. 
 

vii. M/s. Dhiraj & Dheeraj, Chartered Accountants, the statutory auditors of the 
Company, were paid a consolidated amount of Rs. 1.36 million by the Company for 
all the services provided by them. 

 
viii. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 
 

a) Number of complaints filed during the Financial Year: Nil 
 

b) Number of complaints disposed of during the Financial Year: Nil 
 

c) Number of complaints pending as on end of the Financial Year: Nil. 
 

ix. The Company has complied with the mandatory conditions of Corporate 
Governance, as prescribed under the Listing Regulations. 

 
x. The disclosures on loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in 

which directors are interested are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 



 

 

 
xi. CEO / CFO Certificate 

 
The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board, the requirements of the Listing 
Regulations, with regard to financial statements. 

 
xii. Compliance Certificate 

 
Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, a certificate issued by M/s. Sahani & Kothari 
Associates, Company Secretaries, certifying the compliance by the Company with 
the provisions of the Corporate Governance forms part of this Report. 
 

Address for correspondence: 
 

For any assistance, request or instruction regarding transfer or transmission of securities, 
dematerialisation of securities, change of address, non-receipt of annual report, dividend 
warrant and any other query relating to the securities of the Company, the investors may write 
to: 

 
The Company Secretary 
Edel Finance Company Limited 
Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, 
Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098. 
Tel: +91 22 4079 5199 
Email: cs@edelweissfin.com 
Website: 
www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com 

Link Intime India Private Limited 
C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg, 
Vikhroli (West),  
Mumbai - 400 083. 
Tel: +91 81081 16767 
Email: 
rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 
Website: www.linkintime.co.in 

KFin Technologies Limited 
Selenium Tower B, 
Plot 31-32, Financial District, 
Nanakramguda,  
Serilingampally Mandal, 
Hyderabad -500 032 
Tel: +91 40 6716 2222  
Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com 
Website: www.kfintech.com 

 



 

 

Declaration by the Directors under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 regarding adherence to the Code of Conduct 

 
In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
it is hereby confirmed that for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Directors and the 
Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of 
Conduct. 

 
 For and on behalf of the Board 
 Edel Finance Company Limited 

  

 
 
 
 
Ananya Suneja 

 Mumbai, May 24, 2023 

 
Executive Director & 
Chief Financial Officer 

 DIN: 07297081 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

 [Pursuant to Schedule V Para E of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015)] 

 
To, 
The Members, 
Edel Finance Company Limited 
Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road,  
Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098. 
 
We have examined the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance of                    

Edel Finance Company Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on 31st March, 2023, as 

prescribed in the Regulations 17 to 27, 62(1A), and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of The 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).  

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance, 

as specified in the aforesaid provisions of the Listing Regulations. The compliance of 

conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management.  

 

Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the 

Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is 

neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the Company. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  May 24, 2023 

For M/s. SAHANI & KOTHARI ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

“A Peer Reviewed Unit” 
ICSI Unique Code: P2016MH056500 

 
 
 

Kirti Kothari 
Partner 

         Mem. No. F12007  
COP: 17287 

 
UDIN: F012007E000368891 

 















Edel Finance Company Limited 

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2023 

(Currency: Indian rupees 1n millions) 
ASSETS 
Financial assets 
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 
(bl Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 
(cl Derivative financial instruments 
(d) Stock in trade (Securities held for trading) 

1,1 Trade receivables 
(fl Loans 
(g) Investments 
(h) Other financial assets 

Total financial assets 
Non-financial assets 
(al Current tax assets (het)

(b). Deferred tax assets'(net) 

(cl Investment property 
(d) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(e) Intangible assets under development 
!fl Goodwill on consolidation 
1,1 Other Intangible assets 
(hi Other non- financial assets 

Total non-financial assets 

TOTAL ASSETS. 
LIABILITIES 
Financial liabilities 

1,1 Derivative financial instruments 

(bl Trade payables 
i. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
ii. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(cl Debt securities 
(d) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 
(e) Subordinated liabilities 

(f) Other financial liabilities 
Total financial liabilities 

Non-financial liabllitles 

1,1 �urrent tax liabilities (net) 

(bl Provisions 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities {net) 
(di Other non-financial liabilities 

Total non-financial liabilities 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 
(a) Equity share capital 

(bl Instruments entirely equity in nature 
(c) Other equity 

Equity attributable to owners of the parent 
Equity attributable to Non-Controlling Interests 
TOTAL EQUITY 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj 
Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Firm Registration Number: 102454W 

�� 
Partner 
Membership No: 425098 

Mumbai May 24, 2023 

Note 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 

7 1,289.22 3,080.78 
8 2,458.95 3,157.32 
9 17.16 
10 2,138.72 2,229.73 
11 391.88 220.75 
12 41,687.17 41,863.55 
13 27,835.48 25,828.42 
14 1,429.57 756.29 

77,230.99 77,154.00 

15 2,232.13 2,020.39 
16 1,314.71 1,755.95 
17 3,032.59 3,539.01 
18 2,218.98 2,429.91 
19 12.40 17.35 

146.82 146.82 
18 66.32 14.04 
20 478.15 433.38 

9,502.10 10,356.85 

86,733.09 87,510.85 

9 29.17 
21 

8.47 7.30 
393.41 323.47 

22 40,067.29 32,706.46 
23 28,750.44 38,418.79 
24 1,070.13 2,876.19 
25 12,391.47 9,680.97 

82,681.21 84,042.35 

26 33.44 25.23 
27 58.42 52.25 
16 43.59 71.81 
28 135.52 116.96 

270.97 266.25 
82,952.18 84,308.60 

29 7,566.75 5,566.75 
30 1,650.00 1,650.00 
31 (6,176.38) (4,772.47) 

3,040.37 2,444.28 
740.54 757.97 

3,780.91 3,202.25 

86,733.09 87,510.85 

1 to 67 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Vidya Shah 
Director 
DIN: 00274831 

� 



Edel Finance Company Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

Revenue from operations 

Interest income 
Dividend income 
Fee income 
Net gain/ {loss) on fair value changes 
Other operating revenue 
Total revenue from operations 

Other income 
Total Income 

Expenses 
Finance costs 
Impairment on financial instruments 
Employee benefits expense 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Other expenses 
Total expenses 
Profit/ (loss) before share in profit of associates and tax 

Share in profit/ (loss) of associates 
Profit/ {Loss} before tax 

Tax expenses: 
Current tax 
Deferred tax 

Profit/ {Loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans (OCI) 
Income tax - OCI - that will not be reclassified 

Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) 
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) 
Net Profit/ {Loss) for the period attributable to: 

Owners of the parent 
Non controlling interests 

Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the period attributable to: 
Owners of the parent 
Non controlling interests 

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the period attributable to: 
Owners of the parent 
Non controlling interests 

Earnings per share (Face value of 'f 100 each) 
- Basic(�)
•Diluted('.:!::)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj 
Chartered Accountants t'" 102454W 

Partner 
Membership No: 425098 

Mumbai May 24, 2023 

Note For the year ended For the year ended 
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

32 5,999.69 8,952.61 
33 4.12 
34 917.11 1,278.62 
35 1,905.84 749.20 
36 355.39 367.73 

9,182.15 11,348.16 

37 899.34 1,899.48 
10,081.49 13,247.64 

38 8,678.30 10,570.74 
39 (245.93) 526.82 
40 1,093.40 1,216.49 
18 366.14 401.11 
41 1,576.10 1,564.76 

11,468.01 14,279.92 
(1,386.52) (1,032.28) 

(106.31) (361.72) 
(1,492.83) (1,394.00) 

42 
90.11 93.92 

413.84 (172.43) 
(1,996.78) (1,315.49) 

(1.26) (28.69) 
0.66 9.93 

(0.60) (18.76) 
(1,997.38) (1,334.25) 

(2,015.10) (1,395.79) 
18.32 80.30 

(0.72) (18.77) 
0.12 0.01 

(2,015.82) (1,414.56) 
18.44 80.31 

44 
(27.84) (19.34) 
(27.84) (19.34) 

1 to 67 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Anany: Suneja 
Execljtive Director & CFO 
DIN:{i7297081 

Tarun Khurana 
Company Secretary 

23 

Vidya Shah 
Director 
DIN : 00274831 
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Edel Finance Company limited 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(Currency· Indian rupee< in millions\ 

A. Equi1y Share C>plt;,! 

For the \'<!Wended for 1he year ended 
Panicu\ar,. 

31-Mar-2023 

B�la�e at the beginnlns cf the yaar 5,566.75 

Changes ,n Equity Share capital due to prior period errors 

Restated balance at the beginning of the current year 5,566.75 

_Changes-in_equityshare c:,p\tal du�n_gtheyear 2,000.00 

Balance atthe end of the year 7,566.75 

B. OtherEquity 

Particula<S 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 
to,, lorthe year 
Other comprehensive loss 

Total Comprehensive lncome/(Loss) for the year 

Prnm1um re,:eived on IS\ueof equ1tyshares 
Tran1fer Under 29CNHB 
Transfer Under4S -IC RBI 
TrJn1fer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 
Transfer from Reva1luat1on reserve 
Tran;ler to ,mpa,rmenl reserve 
Effect of changes in group•, ,nterest 

Balance asat March 31, 2022 
Prof,t for the year 
Other comprehenS1ve los, 

Total Comprehensive ln<ome/(lo,s} for the year 
Transfer Under 29C NHB 
Transfer Under45 ·lC RBI 
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Resel\le 
Tran,fer from Revaluation reserve 
Re,ersal on account of lapses ofESOP/SAR 
Hfon of change, in group'1 ,nternst 
Deemed d,1tnbut,on du rang the year 
Transfer to ,mpairment reserve 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

As per our report of �ven date attached 

Fer Ohiraj & Dheer3J 
Charter<=d Accountants 
ICAI f,rm Reg1ma1ion Numb<,,: 102454W 

capital Reserve capital Redemption 
Reserve 

(3,596.26) 11434 

13,596.26 114.34 

{3,596.26) 114.34 

(3,596.26 114.34 

(3,596.26) 114.34 

31-Mar-2022 

5,565.7S 

5.566.75 

�.566.75 

Securities P,emium 
Account 

4,269.44 

4,269.44 

4,269.44 

4,269.44 

4,269.« 

ReservesandSu lus 
Special Reserve under Reser.,e under 

see1ion 45-!C of the Reser.,e section 29C cf 
Bank of India Act, 1934 the National 

Housing Bank 
AC! 1987 

1,319.08 S47.80 

1,319.08 547.80 

27.62 
94.93 

1,414.01 575.42 

1,414.01 575.42 
32.13 

13081 

1,544.82 607.55 

Fer and on b�half cf the Beard cf Oireelc<S 

Retairn?d Earnings 

Vidy., Shah 
Director 

(9,253.62} 
(1,395.79) 

(18.77) 

10,668.18 

(27.621 
(94.93) 

1,239.24 
45.40 
2752 

{529 42) 

(10,007.99} 
(2,015.10) 

{0.7Z) 
(12,023.81 

{32.13) 
ino.s1J 

1,239.24 
51.12 
27,52 

584.39 

(10,284.48} 

DIN: 00274S31 

l=P 
• 

• 

fi 
Company Se<;rnlary 

Mumbat May 24, 2023 Mumba, May 24, 20:§ 

Other Comorehensive Income 
Deemed C-apltal Impairment Re,er.,e Debenture Redemption Re,,,,luation Reser.,e Equity Instrument, Total 

Contribution. Reser.,e through Other through Other attributable Non-Controlling 

Equity Ccmprehen,ive Income Comprehensive to owners cf lntere>t 
Income !he parent 

52.55 32.27 2,697.55 960.B<I {426.25) (3,282.26) 2,768.65 
(1,395.79) 80.30 

{JS.77) 0.01 

52.55 32.27 2.697.55 960.S<I 426.25 14,696.82 2,84a.96 

(1,239.24) 
(45.40) 

27.52 
426.25 (103-17) [2,090.99) 

52.SS 32.27 1,458.31 915.44 {4,772.47) 7S7.97 
(2,015.10] 18.32 

(0.72) 0.12 

SZ.55 32.27 1,458.31 915.44 (6,788.29 776.41 

jl,239.24) 
(51.12) 

27.52 
584.39 (35.87) 

S2.55 32.27 219.07 864.32 (6,176.38) 740.54 

� 





Edel Finance Company Limited 
Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued) 

Notes: 
I Cash receipts and payments for transaction with group companies in which the turnover is quick, the amounts arc large, and the maturities are short 

are presented on net basis in accordance with Ind AS� 7 Statement of Cash Flows. 
2 Above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in lnd AS 7 prescribed under the Companies Act (Indian 

Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 under the companies Act ,2013. 

3 Refer note 50 for disclosure relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Dhiraj and Dhccraj 

Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Finn Registration Number: 102454W

Partner 
Membership No: 425098 

Mumbai May 24, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Ana1pa Suneja

Exeq\Aivc Director & CFO 
DIN:07297081 

Tarun Khurana 

Company S -' · ary 

Mumbai May 24, 2023 

Vidya Shah 

Director 
DIN : 00274831 

� 



















































































































































































Edel Finance Company limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued) 

(Currnn,y : Indian rupees In mllllans) 

60. The Indian Parliament h;is approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 whli:h subsume, t/1e Provident fund and the Gr;itulty A,t and rules there under. The Ministry 
of Labour and Employment has also released draft rules thereunder on November 13, 2020 and has invited suggestions from st;i�eholders which are under active 
,onsideration by the Ministry. The Group wll! evaluate the rules, assess the lmpa,t if any, and account for the same once the rules are notified and become 
elfe,tlve. 

61. Pursuant to the Amendment Agreement dated March 'l, 2023 to the Amended and Restated Shareholders' Agreement dated Mnrch 18, 2021 between Edelweiss 
Flnanci,11 Service Ltd (Holding Company), Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited, PAGAC Ecst;isy Pte Ltd and Nuvama Wealth M,)nagement Limited 
I formerly Edelwei,s Securities limited), the amendment to the articles of ;issoclation of Nuvama Weollh Management Limited and the appointment of independent 
trustee. Nuvama Wealth Management Limited and Its subsidiary Companies ceased to be assoc;iate of the Company w.e.F. MJrch 30, 2023. 
Accordingly, pursu;mt to Ind AS 28 - 'ltwestment, In As,oclates and Joint Venture s', Company's retained interest In Nuvama Wealth Mon;igement limited has been 
recerded ot fair value as at Morch 31, 2023. 

62. "Nuwama Clearing Services limited ("NCSl") (Formerly known ;is Edelweiss Custodial Services limited), an er,twhile assoc,ate of the Edelweiss Financial Services 
Company limited (EFSL) challenged an order, by an Investigating agency, marking lien on Its clearing account, before the 47th Addilion,11 Chief Metropolitan 
Moglstrate Court, Mumbai ("ACMM'"). Since the lnvcstlgJtlon against Anugrah Stock and Broklnc Pvt. Ltd. l""tradln� member"), for which NCSL wa, a de;irlng 
member, is still under process, the said Court contended that it had no objection to setting aside the lien order, upon NCSL providing ;in undertaking to keep 
sufficient assets unencumbered. The above case which Is pendlns for hearing before ACMM, has now been transferred to the City Civil & Sessions Court under 
Maharashtra Protection of Interest of Depositors (In Financial Establishments) Act, 1999 (MPIO). During the quarter ended March 2023, hearing has happened with 
Securities Appellate Tribunal with respect to NSCL's application made to SAT for challenging NCL's perverse order against NCSL; and the said ho;irlng has been 
concluded and for which no order or further directions from SAT have yet been received. Tho matter Is sub,judice and h;is been listed lor further hearing and there 
Is no further update on this matter during the quarter. 
On behalf of NCSL, the Group has provided the undertaking to keep sufficient unencumbered assets amounting to '{ 2,870 ml Ilion belonging to the Company and the 
sold lien has been set aside. 
The Company has been represented by NCSL that it has acted In accordan,e with the agreement entered w,th the trading member and in accordonce with 
applicable laws and regulations. Accordingly, there Is no ,ldjustment required ;n the financial results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2023. 

63. During the previous year ended Match 31, 2022, certain asset, amoun!lng to '{ l,284AO million were 1old to Jlternatove assets funds by the fellow subsidiary NBFCs. 
Edelwel,s Rural & Corpor,1te Services Limited ('ERCSL') a subsidiary, has, vide a put agreement dated July 31, 2021, has guaranteed/ undertaken to purchase these 
financial ;,ssets amounting to � 1,284.40 million on occurrence of certain trigger event as per the agreement. Further, ,ls the risks and rewards continues in the 
Group, these are accounted as financial assets In the consolidated financial st ,;tements and the consequent expected credit las, Is recorded In the consolidated 
financial statements. 

64. The Income Tax Authorities l" the Department" ) had conducted a search under section 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 on the premises of the Company during 
March 2023. The Company had provided t/1e requisite details which were sought by the Income tax authorities during the course of the search. Subsequently, the 
Company has rece;ved summons under section 131 (lA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 seeking certain data/information, which the Company is In the process of 
re,pondlng. The Company ,;on firms that neither the Department has raised any tax dcmJnd nor the Company has ,1dmitted omy tax ll,1blllty. Further, no proceeding 
or assessment orders hove been Issued post the search conducted by the Department. While uncertainty exists regard;ng the outcome of the proceedings by the 
Department, the Comp,1ny is extending Its full cooperation with the concerned income tax authorities and based on current intern,)! assessment management Is of 
the view that this will not have any Impact on the Company's financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

65. During the year ended March 31, 2023, Nido Home Finance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance limited), one subsidiary of the Company, hod 
sold certain financial assets amounting to � 129.8 millions (net of provisions and losses I, to asset reconstructions company trust ('ARC Trust') and a,qulred security 
receipts ISR) amounting to '{110.3 millions from these ARC Trusts. Ind AS 109 - 'Financial Instruments', premibed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
requires substantially all risks and rewards to be transferred for the purpose of de-recognition of such financial a11ets from lhe Company's financial result. Edelweiss 
Financial Servkes Limited (EFSLI, the ultimate holding company had undertaken substantially all risks and rewards In respect of such financial a,sets. As a result, 
these financial assets were de-recognized in the Company's financial rnsult. 

66. Nido had Initiated sale or certain credit Impaired financial assets before March 31, 2023 and for which definitive contracts were executed post the balance sheet 
d,1te. These financial assets sold after March 31, 2023, amounted to � 20S.7 millions (not of provisions and losses) to asset reconstruction compimy trust {ARC Trust). 
As per Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 slgniflc;int judgement Is involved in class;flcation of assets. 
Accordingly, on account of subsequent sale to and recovery from ARC Trust of such ,redlt Impaired assets, management has recorded such financial assets as 
recoverable and not as credit impaired flnanclol ;issets. EfSL, the ultimate holding Company h,;s, undertaken sub1tantially all risks ;md reward, In respect of these 
financial assets aggregating to t 174,8 millions. 
As at March 31, 2023, there are no lmpa,;t on the flnanclJI statements of the Nido other than expected credit loss retarded In the statement of Profit and Loss for 
the ye;irended March 31, 2023 amounting to � 5.3 millions. 

67. Figures for lhe previous year have been regrouped/ recl,1s1lfled wherever necessary to confirm to current year presentation. 

As per our report of even d,)tc attached 

For Dhlraj & OhecrJj 
Chartered Account

�� ICAI Firm Reglstratl 1/ 024S4W 

Member,hip No: 42S098 

Mumb;il May 24, 2023 

For and on behalf of the l!oard of Directors 

Vldya Shah 

Director 
DIN : 00274831 
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Form AOC-I

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures

Part "A": Subsidiaries

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Name of the Subsidiary Company

Nido Home Finance 

Limited (Formerly known 

as Edelweiss Housing 

Finance Limited)

Edelweiss Investment 

Adviser Limited

Comtrade Commodities 

Services Limited 

(Formerly known as 

Edelweiss Comtrade 

Limited)

Allium Finance Private 

Limited

Edelweiss Rural & 

Corporate Services 

Limited

Reporting currency INR INR INR INR INR

Exchange rate

Paid-up Equity Share Capital 693.50 6,755.50 290.00 68.26 9,965.35 

Reserves of the Subsidiary 7,251.18 (10,954.45) (282.96) 1,240.08 (5,639.79)

Total Assets of the Subsidiary 37,862.20 6,759.15 34.62 1,311.34 27,019.56 

Total Liabilities of the Subsidiary 29,917.52 10,958.11 27.58 3.00 22,694.00 

Investments 2,804.02                                            -                                             -   1,071.46 19,190.01 

Total Turnover 4,446.85 1,636.45 0.61 58.37 8,012.17 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 208.07 (1,167.13) (4.62) 62.84 (1,753.08)

Provision for taxation 47.44 6.08 0.03 26.13 215.46 

Profit/(Loss) after taxation 160.63 (1,173.21) (4.64) 36.71 (1,968.54)

Proposed dividend -                                        -                                        -                                       -                                     -                                    

% of shareholding 95.00% 100% 100% 73.76% 100%

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ananya Suneja Vidya Shah Tarun Khurana

Executive Director & CFO Director Company Secretary

DIN : 07297081 DIN : 00274831

May 24, 2023

Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounst/) Rules, 2014)



Form AOC-I

Part "B": Associates

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Sr No Name of the Associate

ECap Equities Limited 

(Formerly known as Edel 

Land Limited)

1 Latest Audited Balance sheet date 31-Mar-23

2 Share of Associate held by the Company on the 

year end

Number of shares                            31,758,000 

Amount of Investment in Associates ( ` in 

millions)                                  8,600.0 

Extend of Holding % 52.31%

3
Reason why the associate is not consolidated No Control

4 Networth attributable to Shareholding as per 

latest audited Balance Sheet ( ` in millions)
                               5,399.16 

5 Profit / (Loss) for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation                                    (79.89)

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation (including 

exceptional items)                                    (72.83)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ananya Suneja Vidya Shah

Executive Director & CFO Director

DIN : 07297081 DIN : 00274831

Tarun Khurana

Company Secretary

May 24, 2023

Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounst/) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures
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NOTICE OF THE 34TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 34TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 
MEMBERS OF EDEL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON SATURDAY, 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AT 4.00 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT 
EDELWEISS HOUSE, OFF. C.S.T. ROAD, KALINA, MUMBAI – 400 098 TO TRANSACT THE 
FOLLOWING BUSINESS: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To consider and adopt:- 
 

a. the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2023, together with the Report of the Board and the Auditors 
thereon; and 

 
b. the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2023, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Vidya Shah (DIN 00274831), who retires by 
rotation and, being eligible, offered herself for re-appointment. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 
3. Alteration of the Articles of Association 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 5 and 14 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed 
thereunder and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of 
Non-convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, the approval of the Members be and 
is hereby accorded for alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company by 
insertion of the following sub-clause (3) after the existing sub-clause (2) of Article 
49:- 
 

‘(3) The Board shall appoint the person nominated by the Debenture Trustee(s) 
as per the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 as a Director on the Board of the 
Company. Such appointment shall be subject to the provisions of Debenture 
Trust Deed(s), the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Regulations and all other 
applicable laws.’ 
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FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘the Board’ which term shall be deemed to include any Committee 
which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute to exercise its 
powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution) be and is hereby 
authorised on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary or expedient in the interest of 
the Company and with power on behalf of the Company to settle any questions, 
difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard without requiring the Board to 
secure any further consent or approval of the Members of the Company.” 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

EDEL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED 
 

 
Tarun Khurana  

Company Secretary  
(Membership No. A12344) 

 
Mumbai, September 28, 2023 

 
Registered Office:  
Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road,  
Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098.  
CIN:  U65920MH1989PLC053909 
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NOTES: 
 
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED 

TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND 
SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES, IN 
ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY NOT LESS 
THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING. 

 
A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in 
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is 
proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital 
of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any 
other person or shareholder. 
 

2. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), 
in respect of the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting 
(AGM/Meeting) is annexed hereto. 

 
3. Pursuant to the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India, information in respect of the Director seeking re-
appointment at the AGM is given in the Annexure to the Notice. 
 

4. The Meeting is convened at a shorter notice after obtaining the necessary consent of the 
Members as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

5. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the 
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution 
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 
 

6. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding and the 
Register of contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested will be 
available for inspection by the members at the AGM and at the Registered Office of the 
Company during the business hours on all working days up to the date of the AGM. 
 

7. Copies of the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 
are being sent to the members by hand delivery. Members may also note that the Notice 
of 34th AGM and the Company’s Annual Report for 2022-23 will be made available on the 
Company’s website at www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. The physical copies of the 
documents required to be kept for inspection under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 
2013 will also be available at the Company’s Registered Office for inspection during 
business hours on every working day upto the date of AGM. 

 
8. A Route Map along with Prominent Landmark for easy location to reach the venue of 

Annual General Meeting is annexed with the notice of Annual General Meeting. 
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE DATED SEPTEMBER 28, 2023 
 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
ITEM NO. 3:  
 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), has amended the SEBI (Issue and Listing of 
Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (the NCS Regulations), requiring all the companies 
whose Non-convertible Debentures are listed on the stock exchanges to amend their Articles of 
Association such that the Debenture Trustees shall have the right to appoint a Nominee Director on 
its Board in the event of default (as defined in the NCS Regulations). 
 
The Company has been raising the funds by issue of NCDs in accordance with the provisions of the 
NCS Regulations. The NCDs are listed at BSE Limited. Therefore, it would be necessary for the 
Company to alter the Articles in the manner provided in the Resolution at Item No. 3 of the Notice. 
 
The Board of Directors recommends passing of the Special Resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of the 
Notice. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any 
way, directly or indirectly, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this item of business. 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

EDEL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED 
 
 
 

Tarun Khurana  
Company Secretary  

(Membership No. A12344) 
 
Mumbai, September 28, 2023 
 
Registered Office:  
Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road,  
Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098.  
CIN: U65920MH1989PLC053909 
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Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting and 
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2): 
 
Particulars Ms. Vidya Shah 
Date of Birth June 18, 1966 
Age 57 years 
Date of first Appointment May 28, 2021 
Experience in functional Area Over three decades of experience in the financial services sector 

& strategic philanthropy 
  

Qualifications Post Graduate Diploma in Management from IIM, Ahmedabad. 
  

Terms and Conditions of 
Appointment/Re-appointment 

Appointed as a Non-executive Director, liable to retire by rotation. 
  

Remuneration to be paid None 
  

Remuneration last drawn None 
No. of Board Meetings 5 (five) 
Attended during the year  

  

Directorship in other 
Companies (Public Limited 
Companies) 

1. Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 
2. Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 
3. Vardhman Special Steels Limited 
4. EdelGive Foundation 

Name of listed entities from 
which the person has resigned 
in the past three years 

ECL Finance Limited (a High Value Debt Listed Entity as defined 
under the Listing Regulations) 

Membership/ Chairmanship of 
Committees of other public 
limited companies (Audit 
Committee and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship/ Investors 
Grievance Committee only) 

 

Member of Audit Committee - Vardhman Special Steels Limited 

Relationship with other 
Directors inter-se and with Key 
Managerial Personnel of the 
Company 

 

None 

No. of shares held in the 
Company 

None 

 



 

Edel Finance Company Limited 
Corporate Identity Number:  U65920MH1989PLC053909 
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098. Tel No.: +91 22 4079 5199 

        Email: cs@edelweissfin.com Website: www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com 

PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
Edel Finance Company Limited 
Corporate Identity No. (CIN): U65920MH1989PLC053909 
Registered office: Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, 
Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098 
 
Folio No./ Depository A/c No. _____________________ 

 
I/We, being the member (s) of ……………………………………… Shares of the above named company, 
hereby appoint: 
 

1. Name  
 

2. Name  
 

3. Name  

Address  
 

Address  
 

Address  
 

E-mail Id 
 

E-mail Id E-mail Id 
 

Signature  
 
……………………………….….,   
or failing him 

Signature  
 
……………………………..……….., 
or failing him 

Signature  
 
…………………………………. 

 
 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 34th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 4.00 p.m. at the Registered Office of 
the Company at Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098 and at any adjournment thereof 
in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:  
 

Sr. 
No.  

Resolution For Against 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
1. To consider and adopt:- 

 
a. the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2023, together with the Report of the Board 
and the Auditors thereon; 
 

b. the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2023, together with the Report of 
the Auditors thereon. 

 

  

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Vidya Shah (DIN: 00274831) who retires 
by rotation and, being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 
 

  

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
3. Alteration of the Articles of Association. 

 
  

 
Signed this………………………. day of…………………………. 2023.   Affix Revenue Stamp 

 
 
Signature of shareholder:_________________ 

 
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s):____________________ 
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
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Edel Finance Company Limited 
Corporate Identity No. (CIN): U65920MH1989PLC053909 

Registered office: Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098 
 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
34th Annual General Meeting – Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 4.00 p.m. 

 
 
Folio No. /Client ID No./DP Id 
No. 
 

 

No. of shares  

 
I/we certify that I/we am/are a Registered Member/Authorised Representative of Registered Member 
under Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 /Proxy for Registered Member of Edel Finance Company 
Limited. 
 
I/we hereby record my/our presence at the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 
Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 4.00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at Edelweiss House, Off. 
C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098 and at any adjournment thereof. 
 
 
 
 
*Member’s/ Authorised 
Representative’s/ Proxy’s full name in block letters 
 
 
 
Member’s/Authorised Representative/ 
Proxy’s Signature 
 
 
 
 
Note: Please fill in this attendance slip and hand it over at the venue of the meeting.  
 
* Please strike off whichever is not applicable 
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Route Map of the 34th Annual General Meeting of Edel Finance Company Limited 

AGM Venue: Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098 

Landmark – University of Mumbai, Kalina 
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